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MINEHEAD Harbour

With the decline of Dunster haven Minehead rose to prominence as a port in the early 15th century. The harbour has seen many alterations since that time. The first quay was a modest affair called the Were.
THE WERE

During the Middle Ages fishing boats and small vessels coming to Minehead were presumably beached but in the 1420s a jetty known as the Were was built at the east point of North Hill, south of the present quay. It was also known as the Cobbe and was sometimes claimed to have been rebuilt by Hugh Luttrell. Many early 16th-century merchants left money to maintain the Were. The Luttrells spent £2—3 a year on its maintenance in the 1550s and the inhabitants £50. 

An early 16th-century plan shows ships on both sides of Minehead quay, which appears as a promontory with two cannon facing the sea to the north. In 1559 it was said a fleet of 50 could lie safely at Minehead but by 1569 the quay needed repair, probably due to a fall in the high water mark at that period. That caused the build up of shingle banks, which if not removed reduced the size of vessels using the port and damaged trade.
THE OLD QUAY
George Luttrell later claimed to have started rebuilding the quay but needed funds to finish the work. In the 1600s his supporters claimed that in the previous 20 years four or five ships and 28 people were lost because of the state of the harbour. In 1609—10 Luttrell began a new quay on a different alignment 600 ft by 66ft, which would provide a harbour for 240 ships. It was completed by 1622 and Luttrell was allowed to take dues from shipping to pay for maintenance. It was built of unmortared large stones said to have been raised by floating barrels and was considered the most beautiful quay in the world by a visiting Frenchman. It was rebuilt in 1682 and by 1701 a row of warehouses occupied the landward end.

The Were Pool in Quay Street had been created to flush out the shingle but it was being built over by 1650 and was disused by 1701 when Sir Jacob Bancks commissioned a harbour survey from Edmond Dummer who employed Thomas Surbey. The report suggested extending the pier by 100 ft, reinforcing it with backwork and timber breakwaters on the north and either side of the shipyard to prevent shingle moving to the harbour mouth. It also recommended building breakwaters on the landward side of the harbour to prevent whirlpools aggravated by the recent removal of a rock ledge for moorings and to the south-east on the site of a row of large mooring posts. Bancks also requested four eight-pounder and six six-pounder cannons to defend the quay in 1702.
 There were said to be up to 24 ships besides fishing boats in harbour when the great storm of November 1703 struck. Four men were killed including a man trying to get a ship off the beach. The quay was badly damaged but Minehead proved the safest harbour in the west in that storm. 
THE NEW QUAY

In 1704 Daniel Dennell contracted to build a timber extension to the quay 120 ft long, 30 ft deep and 30 ft high. The quay duties levied under the 1701 Minehead Harbour Act were assigned to Dennell to cover his costs but he abandoned the work, which was completed in stone in 1715, the extra defences were never built and a scheme for two docks in the harbour was never carried out.  However a large breakwater east of the harbour was built and remained in use in 1796.

Despite storm damage in 1770 and 1781 Minehead continued to be regarded as a safe harbour and the running ashore of the San Joseph y Animas of Spain in 1784 was blamed on the pilot who was suspended. 
By 1823 the harbour was again choked with shingle and a new roundhead was needed with a harbour light for the winter months. In 1833 civil engineer James Pinkerton and William Collard Cox agreed to build a breakwater behind the quay. By 1845 the 716 ft of inner wall formed the legal quays where all loading and unloading must take place. The 2-a. harbour, although dry at low tide, could have up to 20ft
 of water at high tides if kept clear of shingle. 
In 1901 John Webster proposed another breakwater and concrete breakwaters were installed in the 1930s to prevent the loss of the harbour destroying the beach, then more commercially valuable. The harbour was closed in 1949 because of shingle blockage but in 1951 it was cleared, re-opened and handed over to Minehead Urban District Council. The landward harbour wall was rebuilt 1983—4 and 1996. 
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�     Later used as bollards as two still are but three were dug out and restored in the 1980s. 


�     It had been 27 ft in 1753.
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